
Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes – March 18, 2014 

  1 

Dubuque County Zoning Commission  
Minutes of March 18, 2014  

Chairperson Reiss called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

 

 

1.  ROLL CALL:  Members present:  Kenneth Schmitt, Janet Reiss, Richard Kaufman, 

John Goodmann, and Ronald Lindblom and Mary Klostermann.  Staff Present:  Anna 

O’Shea.  

  

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  A motion was made by Mr. Schmitt, seconded by Mr. 

Goodmann, to approve the minutes of the February 18, 2014 meeting. Mr. Kaufman 

abstained.   Vote:  5-1. 
 

  3. PLAT APPROVAL: 

 

a. Plat of Spring Valley Estate # 2 - Final Plat 

Plat of Survey of Lot 1 and Lot 2 and Lot 3 of Spring Valley Estate # 2 as comprised of Lot 1 and 

Lot 2 of Spring Valley Estate, all in Section 35 (T88N R3E) Mosalem Township, Dubuque 

County, Iowa. 

 

  The property is owned by Thomas & Denise Hilkin and Linda Lovely LLC and is located 

0.29 miles north of the Jackson County Line along Weber Road. The property is Zoned A-1 

Agricultural with a total of 74.17 acres surveyed. 

  

 The Survey creates 3 lots. Lot 1 has a total of 40.21 acres and is adding an additional 3 

acres for a future farm home. Lot 2 has a total of 15.14 acres with an existing home and 

farm accessory buildings on the property. Lot 3 has a total of 18.82 acres and will remain in 

agricultural use. Access to Lot 1 will be off of Weber Road per Permit# 201268. Lot 2 

access will be across lot 1-1 of the NW ¼ SE ¼ of Section 35 to Weber Road. Lot 3 access 

will be across the SW ¼ SW ¼ of Section 35 to Weber Road.  

 

 Ms. O’Shea stated that there is a lien on the property by Farm Bureau Mutual Insurance 

Company that has not been cleared at this time. Ms. O’Shea recommended that the plat be 

approved subject to the lien being cleared or having the lien holder signature on the plat. 

 

 Mr. Schmitt asked if the outstanding lien was going to be taken care of?  

  

 Speaking to the Board was Thomas & Denise Hilkin, 6486 Massey Station Rd, Dubuque, 

IA. Mr. Hilkin stated that the lien will be taken care of and that his attorney had contacted 

Ms. O’Shea and told her that a check was in the mail to satisfy the lien. 

            

           Mr. Kaufman asked Ms. O’Shea if she had advised the Hilkins on what to do in order to get 

the lien cleared. She responded yes. 

 

Ms. O’Shea reported that the plat reconfigures two lots into three lots because one of the 

lots was split in half. Ms. O’Shea explained further that the Hilkins wanted to add three 

acres to be able to have a 40-acre parcel and be able to build a home on the property. Mr. 

Hilikin added that the the new property gives them access to a creek that is just south of 

their property. 

 



Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes – March 18, 2014 

  2 

Ms. Reiss asked if there was anyone else to speak to this plat. No one spoke. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Kaufman, seconded by Ms. Klostermann and passed 

unanimously to approve the final plat subject to the clearance of an existing lien on 

the property. Vote: 6-0. 

 

b. Denlinger Farm Subdivision - Final Plat  

Plat of Survey of Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Denlinger Farm Subdivision comprised of Lot 3 of Gansemer 

Farms in Section 5 (T90N R1E) Jefferson Township, Dubuque County, Iowa. 

   

  The property is owned by Steve Denlinger and is located 0.15 miles North of Balltown 

along Waupeton Road and Breitbach Road.  The property is Zoned A-1 Agricultural with a 

total of 64.47 acres surveyed.  

 

 The Survey creates two lots, Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Denlinger Farm Subdivision. Lot 1 has a 

total of 5.22 acres and contains an existing farm home off of Breitbach Road. Lot 2 has a 

total of 59.25 acres with an existing farm accessory building on the property. Both lots will 

remain in agricultural use.  

  

 Lot 1 will use an existing residential access off of Breitbach Road. Lot 2 will utilize an 

existing field entrance off of Waupeton Road for access. 

 

 Speaking to the Board was Steve Denlinger, 19466 Breitbach Rd, Sherrill, IA. Mr. 

Denlinger stated that he did not have anything to add to the statement by Ms. O’Shea 

regarding the plat. 

   

 Mr. Goodmann asked Mr. Denlinger if he was selling any acreage. Mr. Denlinger said no 

but he was thinking about it in the future. 

 

 Ms. Reiss asked if anyone else wished to speak for or against this plat. No one spoke. 

 

 A motion was made by Mr. Goodmann, seconded by Ms. Klostermann and passed 

unanimously to approve the final plat. Vote: 6-0 

 

4.   REZONING CASES:   
 

ZC#03-02-14   Mark & Lorie Riniker    A-1 TO A-2 

The applicants are requesting to rezone from A-1 Agricultural to A-2 Agricultural Residential 

1.08 acres more or less, to allow the existing farmhouse to be platted off from the remainder of the 

farm property. The property is located 1.75 miles west of the city of Bankston along Dyersville 

East Rd and is legally described as Lot 1 of Gaul Acres, Plat 1 Section 19 (T89N R1W) Iowa 

Township, and Dubuque County, Iowa. 

 

 The property is owned by Mark & Lorie Riniker.  Zoning in the area includes A-1 to the 

north, south, east, and west. Five (5) rezoning notification letters were sent to the property 

owners and the City of Bankston was notified. There was a variance (BA 02-13-02) 

approved for this property in 2002 to allow Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Gaul Acres Plat 1 to be 

surveyed.  

 



Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes – March 18, 2014 

  3 

 Two variances of 35’ each were granted to both the required 50’ right side and required 50’ 

rear yard setbacks. There are no previous rezoning cases, or special use permits attached to 

this property. Smart Plan Policy Chapter 9, Agriculture and Natural Resources page 129 

objective 3.1 and page 130 objectives 5.1 and 5.3 may apply to this case. 

 

 Ms. Reiss asked if there was anyone present to speak to this case. 

 

 Speaking to the Board was Mark & Lorie Riniker, 13435 Graf Rd, Durango, IA. Mr. 

Riniker stated that Ms. O’Shea explained everything to them and they were comfortable 

with the explanation Ms. O’Shea gave regarding the rezoning request 

 

 Mr. Goodmann asked what the circumstances were regarding this rezoning request? 

 

 Mr. Riniker explained that they purchased this property with an older existing farm home 

on the property. The home has too many steps for him and his wife to navigate as they get 

older, so they decided to construct a new retirement house with no steps. 

 

 Ms. O’Shea stated that this property was a 40-acre parcel that that in 2002 the farm home 

was platted off with 8 acres. Now, they want to plat off just the farm home with one acre 

and keep the seven (7) acre balance for another new farm home. Ms. O’Shea explained 

further that the Rinikers have applied for the Farm Exemption as it stands now, so they will 

be using the current farm exemption process for the proposed new dwelling and the 

proposed A-2, District for the original farm dwelling. 

 

 Mr. Goodmann asked if the Board is considering separation of the existing farm home now? 

 

 Ms. O’Shea responded yes, that the proposed A-2, District would be for the existing farm 

dwelling with one acre of ground, and the balance would remain in A-1 for a future farm 

dwelling to be constructed this summer. 

 

 Mr. Lindblom asked how does one get a farm exemption on eight (8) acres or is he missing 

something? 

 

 Ms. O’Shea explained that the current farm exemption qualification is five acres or more of 

A-1 zoned ground with some kind of agricultural use of the property. 

 

 Mr. Goodmann stated that the necessary exemptions were obtained and this request is what 

the A-2 district was designed to be used for. 

 

 A motion was made by Mr. Schmitt, seconded by Ms. Klostermann and passed 

unanimously to approve the rezoning request. Vote: 6-0 
 

  

5.  OLD BUSINESS: Smart Code update and Farm Exemption Amendment discussion. 

 

Ms. O’Shea stated that she did not have time to prepare any information for the farm 

exemption discussion and she will put it on next month’s agenda for further discussion.  

 

In regard to the Zoning Code (Smart Code), Ms. O’Shea stated that there would be a night 

meeting next week with the stakeholders in Farley at 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday, March 26, 



Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes – March 18, 2014 

  4 

2014 at the Farley Memorial Hall. The discussion will focus on residential districts, 

residential subdivisions and the appropriate illustrations to be used in the ordinance. 

 

Mr. Goodmann asked if the Board would be notified of that meeting? 

 

Ms. O’Shea said she would send an email to the Board members notifying them of the 

meeting. Mr. Schmitt said he would like a call. 

 

Mr. Lindblom asked why we have not gotten rid of the five acre minimum regarding the 

farm exemption. Ms.O’Shea explained that the Board of Supervisors had just a few issues 

remaining with the farm exemption so she would bring a few ideas to next month’s meeting 

for discussion and the Board can decide how to proceed.    

 

6.  NEW BUSINESS:  None. 

 

7.  PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Speaking to the Board was Leroy Gaul, 105 13
th

 Street SE, 

Dyersville, IA.  Mr. Gaul asked if Mark & Lorie Riniker, from the previous rezoning case, 

wanted to remove the existing farm home. 

 

Ms. Klostermann explained that the Riniker's wanted to split off the original farm dwelling 

from the farm and sell it to their son.  

 

Mr. Goodmann stated that the one acre of ground with the original farm dwelling is being 

proposed for A-2 zoning so the remainder of the A-1 zoned property can stay in 

agricultural use. 

 

Mr. Gaul asked what would happen to the farm buildings. 

 

Mr. Schmitt responded that the farm buildings would remain with the remaining ground 

and with the proposed new home. 

 

Mr. Gaul said he did not have any objection to the rezoning request. 

 

8.  ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made by Mr. Schmitt, seconded by Ms. 

Klostermann and passed unanimously to adjourn.  Vote: 6-0. The meeting adjourned at 

6:30 p.m. 

 


